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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

KYLE SMITH, Individually and On Behalf
Of All Others Similarly Situated,
Civil Case No.
Plaintiff,

-against-

TEMPLE UNIVERSITY,

Defendant.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintift, KYLE SMITH, (“Plaintiff”) individually, and on behalf of all others similarly
situated, upon personal knowledge and upon information and belief as to all other matters, as and
for his Complaint against Defendant, TEMPLE UNIVERSITY, (“TEMPLE”) alleges as

follows:

NATURE OF CLAIMS

1. Plaintiff brings this action individually, and on behalf of all similarly situated persons,
who enrolled as students in TEMPLE’S Fox School of Business and Management’s Online
MBA program, between 2015 and the present.

2. Plaintiff alleges violations of the Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law
(“CPL”) Act of December 16, 1968, P.L. 1224, as amended, 73 P.S. §§201.1—201-9.3 and seeks
injunctive relief, compensatory, consequential, punitive damages, costs and reasonable attorney’s

fees for TEMPLE’S” deceptive and unfair business practices, as herein alleged.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3 The provisions of the Class Action Fairness Act (“CAFA™), 18 U.S.C. § 1332(d)
explicitly provides for the original jurisdiction of the Federal Courts in any class action in which
any member of the plaintiff class is a citizen of a State different from any defendant, and in
which the matter in controversy exceeds the sum of $5,000,000 exclusive of interests and costs.
4, Plaintiff alleges that the total claims of individual class members in this action are well in
excess of $5,000,000 in the aggregate, exclusive of interests and costs, as required by 28 U.S.C.
§§ 1332(d)(2)(5).

5. Plaintiff is a Citizens of New Jersey. TEMPLE is a Citizen of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania. Members of the Class reside in 40 states of the Union other than Pennsylvania and
their citizenship is diverse from that of TEMPLE.

6. Diversity of citizenship exists under CAFA, as required by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332(d) (5) (B).
7. The total approximate number of members of the proposed Plaintiff Class is 350 persons.
8. The Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ state law claims pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §1367(a).

9. Venue 1s proper in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391, because a substantial part of the events or omissions
giving rise to the claim occurred in this district and Defendant is subject to personal jurisdiction
in this District.

THE PARTIES

10. Plaintiff, KYLE SMITH, is a citizen and resident of Eatontown, New Jersey 07724,
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11. TEMPLE is an incorporated comprehensive research university, created under the laws of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and maintains its headquarters and largest campus in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS

12 TEMPLE is a public research university in Philadelphia and a national leader in
education, research and healthcare, with approximately 40,000 undergraduate, graduate and
professional students.

13. The Fox School of Business and Management is a school within TEMPLE, offering
several Master of Business Administration programs, including an MBA delivered 100% online.
14. The Fox Online MBA program commenced in 2009. It is an AACSB accredited program.
At present, there are approximately 550 students enrolled in the program, with an average age of
36 and 12 years of work experience.

15. Approximately 190 students have graduated from the program since its inception. There
is an application acceptance rate of 77%.

16.  Plaintiff graduated from Rowan University in 2007 and earned a B.A. in Chemical
Engineering.

17.  Plaintiff has received certification as a project management professional (PMP) and is
presently employed on a full-time basis, as a Senior Project Engineer at BASF.

18. Plaintiff enrolled in the Fox Online MBA program in the Spring 2017 semester.

19.  To date, Plaintiff has completed 30 credits of study and incurred tuition costs of $

47,934.00. Plaintiff has achieved a Grade Point Average (GPA) of 3.97 [out of 4.0].
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Online MBA Programs

20. People looking for growth in their current careers or to launch a new one, are investing
time and money to earn an accredited MBA to advance in the job marketplace.

21, Online MBA programs offer the ultimate flexibility for motivated professionals. Students
can generally complete coursework on their own schedule and still maintain a full-time job and
other commitments.

22, There are an estimated 11,000 students enrolled in AACSB accredited online MBA
schools in the United States.

23. An analysis of data submitted to U.S. News by schools in an annual survey offers a
glimpse at the average student in a ranked online MBA program who enrolled between July 2015
and June 2016. According to these data, the average age of online MBA students who started a
program during that period was 33 years old — older than the average of 27 for those who began
an on-campus, full-time MBA program in fall 2016.

24, Among the 124 ranked online programs that provided employment data to U.S. News, an
average of 91 percent were also working full time when they enrolled.

25. Online MBA programs vary widely in cost depending on the school. Universities
generally charge per credit hour, so total cost will depend on how many classes a student takes to
complete all degree requirements.

26. The least expensive online MBA programs can charge less than $300 per credit hour for
in-state tuition, resulting in total program costs under $10,000 before financial aid is applied.
Top-tier, brand-name business schools can charge more than $1,500 per credit hour, which can,

in some cases, results in total costs of more than $100,000 for online MBA degrees.
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Online MBA Ranking

27, There are many big names in the educational rankings industry, including Bloomberg

BusinessWeek, U.S. News & World Report, Financial Times, Forbes, Princeton Review, and

The Economist.

28. Online MBA programs only have a few prestigious rankings, and among the most

respected of them is the U.S. News & World Report Best Online MBA Programs Ranking.

29.  The U.S. News Online MBA rankings are taken specifically for distance MBA programs,

and are based upon vetting the following categories, with the following weights: Student

engagement (28%), Admissions selectivity (25%), Peer reputation (25%), Faculty credentials

and training (11%), and Student services and technology (11%).

30. U.S News describes their methodology transparency as follows:
“US. News offers prospective students an analytically rigorous ranking based on data
specific to the distance program by a specific school, and not solely based upon its
traditional business school’s overall reputation. Meaning that this ranking is not just a
subset of a larger on-campus MBA or business ranking. Students do not have to assess
the data and see how it might apply to the online program. This data is different and gives
students a unique perspective into the exact program in which they might enroll.”

31. US News Online MBA Ranking do not include data available from students and alumni.

The data only shows the intended quality of the program, based upon infrastructure, and the

perspective of the program from the view of peer academic officials.

32, U.S. News started ranking online MBA programs in 2012. In 2014, US News ranked

Temple No. 9.



Case 2:18-cv-00590-CMR Document 1 Filed 02/12/18 Page 8 of 22

53, From 2015 to 2018, U.S. News released their online MBA rankings from a list of 225
different online MBA programs. For those four (4) consecutive years, the U.S. News ranked
TEMPLE University as No.1.

34. TEMPLE’S No.l Online MBA ranking provided significant leverage to enable the school
to increase enrollment in its online MBA offering. In fact, in 2017 alone, TEMPLE was able to
increase its online MBA enrollment by an impressive 57% to 546 students from 351, one of the
largest percentage increases of any online MBA offering that year. Only two other highly ranked
programs did better: The University of Maryland's Smith School of Business boosted enrollment
by 151% to 369 students from only 147 a year ago. The University of North Carolina's Kenan-
Flagler Business School reported a 78% jump in enrollment to 1,862 students from 1,047 a year
earlier.

35 TEMPLE’S four (4) consecutive No.l rankings also had an organic geometric positive
impact on another aspect of U.S. News ranking. The peer assessment portion of the rankings
accounts for 25% of the overall weight. Peer assessment is achieved by the administration of
independent surveys conducted of high-ranking academic officials at MBA programs, which
helps account for intangible factors affecting program quality that statistics do not capture. Also,
employers may hold in high regard MBAs earned from programs that academics respect.
TEMPLE’S persistent dominance as No.l, served to help it to gain new prestige, each
succeeding year.

The Ranking Scandal

36. On January 24, 2018, U.S. News removed TEMPLE’s Fox School of Business No. 1
ranked online MBA program off its newest ranking [2018] after finding out that TEMPLE had

misreported critical data on its program.
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37. Shortly after the release of the 2018 Best Online MBA Programs rankings, TEMPLE
notified U.S. News that it had misreported data that were used to calculate the Best Online MBA
Programs.

38.  TEMPLE significantly overstated the number of new entrants for its 2016-2017 entering
class who submitted GMAT scores. Temple had reported that all 255 [100%] of the program's
latest incoming class submitted GMAT scores to get into the program, with an average GMAT
score of 619. That score put TEMPLE among the five online MBA programs with the highest
test scores in U.S. News' Top 50. In truth and fact, the school acknowledged that only 50
students, or 19.6%, submitted GMAT scores, indicating that the reported average may have been
significantly inflated. Standardized test scores are a common and usually required part of
admissions in graduate business education.

39. U.S. News' methodology penalizes online MBA programs in its rankings if less than 75%
of new entrants submit either a GMAT or GRE score. U.S. News says that is because the lack of
data for 25% of students or more "likely means the standardized test score is not representative
of the entire class." Standardized test scores, of course, are also a sign of the quality of a school's
class. Not requiring the test for admission signals that the overall quality of an incoming class
could be suspect. These scores have a weight of 10% in U.S. News' rankings formula.

40. In penalizing TEMPLE, U.S. News did not address the school’s previously reported data
that allowed TEMPLE’s Online MBA program to attain its No.l ranking for what would have
been four (4) consecutive years.

41. In 2013, TEMPLE reported that 12 of 48 (25%) of the entrants into its Online MBA
program submitted a GMAT, with an average score of 619. None of the applicants, according to

TEMPLE, provided a GRE score.
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42, One year later, in 2014, TEMPLE reported dramatically different numbers. TEMPLE
reported that 100% of its new students [70], submitted a GMAT score with an average score of
638. TEMPLE reported a 100% rate of GMAT compliance for four (4) years in a row, [2014-
2017] during which time it achieved a No. 1 Online MBA ranking by U.S. News.

43.  Rival school administrators have long been suspicious of TEMPLE’S claims that 100%
of its students have taken the GMAT for four (4) consecutive years. This is especially true
because TEMPLE’S Website indicates that the school will waive such requirement if the
candidate (a) possesses “‘managerial level experience;” or (b) has an undergraduate degree from
an AACSB accredited college or (c) has at least 7 years of work experience and a 3.0
undergraduate point average; or (d) possesses a JD, MD or PhD.

44, The misreported data resulted in TEMPLE’S numerical rank being higher than it
otherwise would have been in the overall Best Online MBA Programs rankings and the Best
Online MBA Programs for Veterans rankings.

45. Because of the discrepancies, U.S. News has moved TEMPLE to the "Unranked"
category in the Best Online MBA Programs rankings and removed the school from the Best
Online MBA Programs for Veterans rankings. Schools in the unranked category do not receive
numerical ranks from U.S. News.

46. TEMPLE’S unranked status will last until the 2019 publication of the Best Online MBA
Programs rankings, conditional upon TEMPLE confirming the accuracy of its next data
submission in accordance with U.S. News' requirements.

47. For 2018, U.S. News has not modified the ranks of any other programs on usnews.com in

the Best Online MBA Programs and Best Online MBA Programs for Veterans rankings.
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Effect of the Scandal on Students Enrolled in TEMPLE’S Online MBA Program

48. The classic MBA experience is still the gold standard for many applicants because the
full-immersion experience is invaluable for the networking opportunities and alumni
connections. Students pursuing their degrees online inevitably give up many benefits offered by
full-time programs.

49. Not all hiring managers are familiar with online learning. And, at some larger companies,
earning an online degree can make the hiring process more difficult.

50. Despite the research supporting online education, some recruiters and hiring managers
still see an online MBA as a second-class credential. In its 2009 Corporate Recruiters Survey, the
Graduate Management Admission Council (GMAC), the nonprofit organization that administers
the GMAT, reported that only 9 percent of companies surveyed actively recruit candidates from
online MBA programs, as opposed to the 77 percent that pursue full-time MBA grads. Gail
Dundas, a spokesperson for Intel Corp., captures the prejudice in an e-mail: “We target hiring
from top-tier MBA universities, and online degrees do not tend to be in the top tier.”

51. Recruiters say most employers accept job candidates' online MBAs from well-respected
schools, especially now that the quality of an online MBA education at many institutions is
equivalent to one on a physical campus. But in some cases, experts say, there's still the need to
educate companies about the legitimacy of many online programs. Employers are often more
critical of online, for-profit schools than of online programs offered by nonprofit schools.

52. But recruiters, who are more apt to weigh the reputation of the school than the way the
MBA is delivered, aren't necessarily prioritizing skills that MBA students develop online, says
Brad Remillard, cofounder and executive recruiter at IMPACT Hiring Solutions Executive

Search in Orange County, Fla.
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3. "For me as a recruiter and for my clients, it really depends more on the school than the

online [delivery]," says Remillard, who writes a weekly job advice column for the Orange
County Register and is the author of two books on hiring.

54. But despite their lack of enthusiasm for online MBA programs, hiring managers
understand that online courses from top programs, such as Harvard Business School, are
credible, according to Remillard. "If Harvard puts this on, it's probably a high-quality program,"
he says.

55. Stephen Joel Trachtenberg, former president of George Washington University and a
consultant at the executive recruiting firm Korn/Ferry International, agrees that schools'
reputations matter. Still, an online MBA degree is better than no MBA, Trachtenberg says,
particularly in government and military roles, where hiring managers care more about applicants
having a master's degree than they do about the subject of the degree or where it is obtained.

56.  The scandal has raised grave concerns about the integrity of TEMPLE’S Administration
and will have a long reaching negative impact on school’s reputation, prestige and peer ratings.
57. TEMPLE has engaged Jones Day, a global law firm, to conduct a comprehensive review
of “the Fox School’s ranking data and processes.”

58. Jones Day had been hired by Tulane University after U.S. News kicked out its Freeman
School of Business for a similar reporting error in 2013. Tulane admitted that it inflated average
GMAT scores reported to U.S. News by an average of 35 points for consecutive five years from
2007 through 2011. Freeman also conceded that it had falsely increased the number of completed
applications it received by an average of 116 applications over the same time period.

59.  TEMPLE has also voluntarily asked U.S. News to withdraw the school from its

forthcoming rankings on full- and part-time traditional MBA programs.

10
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60. U.S. News has already modified its Website to eliminate any references to TEMPLE’S
No. 1 rankings for Online MBA programs from 2015-2018.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
61.  This action is brought and may be properly maintained as a Class action pursuant to The
Class Action Fairness Act, 28 U.S.C. § 1332.
62. This action has been brought and may properly be maintained as a class action against
TEMPLE pursuant to the provisions of Rule 23 of the Federal Rule of Civil Procedure, because
there is a well-defined community of interest in the litigation and the proposed Class is easily
ascertainable.
63. Plaintiff brings this action individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, and

seeks certification of a Class, defined as:

All persons who enrolled as students in TEMPLE'S Fox School of
Business and Management’s Online MBA program, between 2015 and

the present.

64. The following are excluded from the Class: TEMPLE, by its affiliates, employees,
officers and directors; heirs, successors and their assigns of any such person or entity, together
with any immediate family member of any officers, directors, employee of said persons and/or
entities. persons or entities that distribute or sell TEMPLE products or programs, the Judge(s)
assigned to this case, and the attorneys of record in this case. Plaintiff reserves the right to amend
the Class definition if discovery and further investigation reveal that the Class should be

expanded or otherwise modified.

11
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65. The proposed Class Period is the time beginning three (3) years prior to the date of filing
of this Class Action Complaint and extending to the date of prospective entry of Judgment for
the Class.
66. Plaintiffs do not know the exact size of the class, but it is reasonably estimated that the
Class 1s composed of at least 550 persons. While the identities of Class members are unknown at
this time, this information can be readily ascertained through appropriate discovery of the
records maintained by Defendants.
67. This action is properly brought as a class action because the proposed Class is so
numerous and geographically dispersed throughout the United States that the joinder of all Class
Members is impracticable.
68. This action is properly brought as a class action because the disposition of Plaintiff's and
proposed Class Members' claims in a class action will provide substantial benefits to both the
parties and the Court.
69. This action is properly brought as a class action because the proposed Class is
ascertainable and there is a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law or fact
alleged herein since the rights of each proposed Class Member were infringed or violated in the
same fashion.
70. This action is properly brought as a class action because there are questions of law and
fact common to the proposed Class which predominate over any questions that may affect
particular Class Members.
T Such common questions of law and fact include but are not limited to:

(1) Whether TEMPLE engaged in fraudulent and deceptive business practices as defined

by the CPL;

12



Case 2:18-cv-00590-CMR Document 1 Filed 02/12/18 Page 15 of 22

(i) Whether Plaintiff and Class Members have been harmed and
the proper measure of relief;
(1ii) Whether Plaintiff and Class Members are entitled to an award of treble, punitive
damages, attorneys' fees and expenses; and
(iv) Whether, Plaintiff and Class Members are entitled to equitable relief, and if so, the
nature of such relief.
72. Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of the members of the proposed Class. Plaintiff
and Class Members have been injured by the same wrongful practices of TEMPLE. Plaintiff's
claims arise from the same practices and conduct that give rise to the claims of all Class
Members and are based on the same legal theories.
73. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Class in that he has no
interests antagonistic to those of the other Class Members, and Plaintiff has retained attorneys
experienced in consumer class actions and complex litigation as counsel.
74. A class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication
of this controversy for at least the following reasons:
(1) Given the size of individual Class Member's claims and the expense of litigating those
claims, few, if any, Class Members could afford to or would seek legal redress
individually for the wrongs Defendant committed against them and absent Class
Members have no substantial interest in individually controlling the prosecution of
individual actions:
(i)  This action will promote an orderly and expeditious administration and
adjudication of the proposed Class claims, economies of time, effort and resources will

be fostered, and uniformity of decisions will be insured,;
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(iif) ~ Without a class action, Class Members will continue to suffer damages,

and TEMPLE’S violations of law will proceed without remedy while Defendant

continues to reap and retain the proceeds of its wrongful conduct; and

(iv)  Plaintiff knows of no difficulty that will be encountered in the

management of this litigation which would preclude class certification.
75. TEMPLE, by its agents, servants and employees has access address and contact
information for the Class Members, which may be used for the purpose of providing notice of
the class action.
76. Plaintiff seeks damages and equitable relief on behalf of the Class on grounds generally
applicable to the entire proposed Class.
77. A Class action is a superior and cost-effective method for the fair and efficient
adjudication of the present controversy and there would accrue enormous savings to both the
Courts and the Class in litigating the common issues on a class wide, instead of on a repetitive
individual basis.
78.  The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the Class would run the
risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications, which would (a) establish incompatible standards of
conduct of Defendants in this action and (b) create the risk that adjudications with respect to
individual members of the Class would, as a practical matter, be dispositive of the interests of the
other members not parties to the adjudications or substantially impair or impede their ability to
protect their interests. Prosecution as a class action will eliminate the possibility of repetitious

litigation.
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FIRST COUNT

79. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations contained in the
preceding paragraphs above, as if fully set forth herein.

80, The Pennsylvania Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, (“CPL”) is
remedial legislation enacted to protect consumer confidence, ensure a level playing field for
honest businesses and promote fair competition in the mass market economy.

81. The CPL is construed in light of the principles and precedents pertaining to the FTCA
Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTCA”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 41-58 and was enacted for the
protection of the public interest.

82. The General Assembly amended the CPL in 1996 to emphasize that not only “fraudulent”
but also “deceptive” acts or practices “creating a likelihood of confusion or misunderstanding”
were forbidden. In fact, many of the unfair practices declared unlawful by the CPL have no
parallel in the common law of fraud.

83. TEMPLE is a “person,” as defined by CPL § 201-2 (2), which provides that:

““Person” means natural persons, corporations, trusts, partnerships, incorporated or
unincorporated associations, and any other legal entities.”

84. CPL § 201-9.2(a), which deals with private actions for alleged violations of that statute,
uses the defined term “person” as follows:

“(a) Any person who purchases or leases goods or services primarily for personal, family
or household purposes and thereby suffers any ascertainable loss of money or property, real or
personal, as a result of the use or employment by any person of a method, act or practice
declared unlawful by section 3 of this act, may bring a private action to recover actual damages

or one hundred dollars ($100), whichever is greater.”
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85. The CPL defines “unfair or deceptive acts or practices” by listing twenty (20) specific
examples and then including a “Catchall” definition barring “any other fraudulent or deceptive
conduct which creates a likelihood of confusion or misunderstanding.” 73 P.S. § 201-2(4).

860. TEMPLE violated and continues to violate the CPL by engaging in unfair methods of
competition” and “unfair or deceptive acts or practices,” specifically proscribed by the statute,
affecting transactions with Plaintiff and Class Members.

87. TEMPLE violated CPL § 201-2 (4)(ii) by engaging in unfair methods of competition”
and “unfair or deceptive acts or practices” by “causing likelihood of confusion or of
misunderstanding to prospective applicants and/or active students, as to the legitimacy of its
Online MBA program.

88.  TEMPLE violated CPL § 201-2 (4)(iii) by engaging in unfair methods of competition”
and “unfair or deceptive acts or practices” by ‘“causing likelihood of confusion or of
misunderstanding as to the validity of certification and No.1 ranking of its Online MBA program
by the U.S. News and other educational ranking services.

89, TEMPLE violated CPL § 201-2 (4)(v) by engaging in unfair methods of competition”
and “unfair or deceptive acts or practices” by representing to U.S. News and other educational
ranking services that its Online MBA program possessed certain characteristics, qualifications,
requirements, benefits, and levels of attainment that were known not to actually exist at the time

reported.
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90.  TEMPLE violated CPL § 201-2 (4)(vii) by engaging in unfair methods of competition”
and “unfair or deceptive acts or practices” by representing that its Online MBA program was of a
particular standard, quality or grade, under circumstances in which it knew that such
representations and reporting were not true at the time made to U.S. Online MBA ranking
organizations.

91. At all relevant times, TEMPLE knew that its Online MBA program’s No. 1 ranking by
U.S. News, was based upon deception and fraudulent data reporting practices it employed.

92. At all relevant times, TEMPLE knew that its Online MBA program’s No. 1 ranking by
U.S. News, was a false representation of fact, based upon lies and fabricated data provided by
TEMPLE.

93. TEMPLE’S unfair competition and deceptive practices, as described above, actually
deceived or had the tendency to deceive a substantial segment of its Online MBA student body,
prospective applicants to the Online MBA program and the general public at large.

94. At all relevant times, TEMPLE knew that the false representations it made and the
misreporting of critical data to U.S News and other ranking organizations was necessary for it to
retain its No.l U.S. News ranking for Online MBA programs.

95. TEMPLE knew that its No.l ranking from U.S. News provided significant leverage to
enable the school to increase enrollment in its online MBA offering.

96.  TEMPLE knew that its failure to achieve No.l ranking from U.S. News was likely to
make a difference in the purchasing decisions of prospective applicants to TEMPLE’S Online

MBA program.
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97. Plaintiff and members of the Class reasonably relied upon the fact that TEMPLE would
truthfully and accurately submit information and critical data to U.S. News and other
organizations that ranked U.S Online MBA programs.

98.  Plaintiff and members of the Class had no means of knowing or learning that TEMPLE
was engaged in the unfair methods of competition and deceptive acts or practices described
herein.

99. If Plaintitf and/or members of the Class had knowledge of TEMPLE’S unfair methods of
competition and deceptive acts or practices described herein, they would not have applied for
admission to TEMPLE’S Online MBA program.

100.  Plaintiff and members of the Class relied upon the apparent legitimacy of TEMPLE’S
Online MBA program, to their pecuniary detriment and irreparable damage to their educational
pedigree.

101.  TEMPLE’S actions and conduct, as described herein was immoral, unethical, and
unscrupulous.

102.  TEMPLE’S actions and conduct, as described herein, have directly caused Plaintiff and
members of the Class to have suffered ascertainable loss, due to the CPL violations alleged.

103.  Plaintiff and members of the Class paid a premium to attend a recognized, top ranked
Online MBA program and did not receive what they bargained for.

104.  The loss sustained by Plaintiff and members of the Class, as a proximate result of
TEMPLE’S CPL violations described herein, include perceived diminution in the academic
value of a TEMPLE Online MBA degree and reduced opportunities in the workplace for

recipients thereof.
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105.  As a proximate result of TEMPLE’S continuing CPL violations, TEMPLE is liable to
Plaintiff and Class members for compensatory damages.
106. As a proximate result of TEMPLE’S continuing CPL violations, TEMPLE is liable to
Plaintiff and Class members for consequential damages.
107.  As a proximate result of TEMPLE’S continuing CPL violations, TEMPLE is liable to
Plaintiff and Class members for punitive damages.
108.  As a proximate result of TEMPLE’S continuing CPL violations, TEMPLE is liable to
Plaintiff and Class members for reasonable attorney’s fees and the costs of this litigation.
109. Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive and other equitable relief, enjoining TEMPLE’S
continuing CPL violations, as alleged herein.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintift, Individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, pray
for Judgment as follows:
(a) Certifying this case as a Class Action with Plaintiff as Class representative and his
attorneys as Class counsel;
(b) Awarding Judgment to Plaintiff for all available damages and other relief under the
FIRST COUNT asserted;
(c) Awarding Judgment to members of the Class for all available damages and other relief
under the FIRST COUNT asserted;
(d) Awarding Plaintiff and members of the Class their costs and disbursements, including
reasonable attorney’s fees;
(e) Awarding Plaintiff and members of the Class pre-judgment and post-

judgment interest;
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(H Granting such other and further relief as may be deemed just and proper in the premises.
Dated: February 9, 2018

RESBECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

|

Jasgl". Brown
JTB/LAW GROUP, LLC
BBO #79369

155 2nd St, Suite 4

Jersey City, NJ 07302

T: (877) 561-0000

F: (855) 582-5297

ithic jthlawaroup.com

Steven Bennett Blau

BLAU, LEONARD LAW GROUP, LLC
Shelly A. Leonard

23 Green Street, Suite 303

Huntington, NY 11743

(631) 458-1010
Shlauteblauleonardlaw . com

sleonardeeblavleonardlaw .com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA — DESIGNATION FORM to be used by counsel to indicate the category of the case for the purpose of
assignment to appropriate calendar.

Address of Plaintiff:__Eatontown, New Jersey 07724

Address of Defendant:__ 1801 N Broad St, Philadelphia, PA 19122

Place of Accident, Incident or Transaction: 1801 N Broad St, Philadelphia, PA 19122
(Use Reverse Side For Additional Space)

Does this civil action involve a nongovernmental corporate party with any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation owning 10% or more of its stock?

(Attach two copies of the Disclosure Statement Form in accordance with Fed.R.Civ.P. 7.1(a)) YesO  Nol
Does this case involve multidistrict litigation possibilities? YesO Nofd
RELATED CASE, IF ANY:

Case Number: Judge Date Terminated:

Civil cases are deemed related when yes is answered to any of the following questions:

1. Is this case related to property included in an earlier numbered suit pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court?
Yest  Nofl
2. Does this case involve the same issue of fact or grow out of the same transaction as a prior suit pending or within one year previously terminated
action in this court?

YesO NofJ
3. Does this case involve the validity or infringement of a patent already in suit or any earlier numbered case pending or within one year previously

terminated action in this court? YesO Nol

4. Is this case a second or successive habeas corpus, social security appeal, or pro se civil rights case filed by the same individual?

YesO NolX

CIVIL: (Place & 1N ONE CATEGORY ONLY)

A. Federal Question Cases: B. Diversity Jurisdiction Cases:

1. @ Indemnity Contract, Marine Contract, and All Other Contracts [. O Insurance Contract and Other Contracts

2. 0 FELA 2. O Airplane Personal Injury

3. O Jones Act-Personal Injury 3. O Assault, Defamation

4. O Antitrust 4. 0 Marine Personal Injury

5. O Patent 5. 8 Motor Vehicle Personal Injury

6. O Labor-Management Relations 6. O Other Personal Injury (Please specify)

7. O Civil Rights 7. O Products Liability

8. O Habeas Corpus 8. O Products Liability — Asbestos

9. O Securities Act(s) Cases 9. 8 All other Diversity Cases

10. 0 Social Security Review Cases (Please specify) DEC@PUVC and Unco.nscion.ablt: Consumer
11. 0 All other Federal Question Cases L’]rz;(;t;c:) g,lg‘ji?:.t.l)on Faimess Act, 18 USC

(Please specify)

ARBITRATION CERTIFICATION
(Check Appropriate Category)
L Jason T. Brown , counsel of record do hereby certify:
& Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 53.2, Section 3(c)(2), that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the damages recoverable in this civil action case exceed the sum of

$150,000.00 exclusive of interest and costs;

& Relief other than monetary damages is sought.

DATE: 2/9/2018 - —~ PA BAR # 79369

W

nz Attorney-at-Law Attorney L.D.#
NOTE: A trial d& novo will be a trial by jury only if there has been compliance with F.R.C.P. 38.

I certify that, to my knowledge, the within case is not related to any case now pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court

except as noted above.

.

2/9/2018 sk ai™ PA BAR # 79359
U Attorney-at-Law Attorney LD.#

DATE:

CIV. 609 (5/2012)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA — DESIGNATION FORM to be used by counsel to indicate the category of the case for the purpose of
assignment to appropriate calendar.

Address of Plaintiff: _Eatontown, New Jersey 07724

Address of Defendant:__ 1801 N Broad St, Philadelphia, PA [9122

Place of Accident, Incident or Transaction: 1801 N Broad St, Philadelphia, PA 19122
(Use Reverse Side For Additional Space)

Does this civil action involve a nongovernmental corporate party with any parent corporation and any publicly held corporation owning 10% or more of its stock?

(Attach two copies of the Disclosure Statement Form in accordance with Fed.R.Civ.P. 7.1(a)) YesO  Nol
Does this case involve multidistrict litigation possibilities? YesO NoKl
RELATED CASE, IF ANY:

Case Number: Judge Date Terminated:

Civil cases are deemed related when yes is answered to any of the following questions:

1. Is this case related to property included in an earlier numbered suit pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court?
Yesd  NoKl

2. Does this case involve the same issue of fact or grow out of the same transaction as a prior suit pending or within one year previously terminated
action in this court?

YesOl Nofl
3. Does this case involve the validity or infringement of a patent already in suit or any earlier numbered case pending or within one year previously

terminated action in this court? Yes Nol

4. Is this case a second or successive habeas corpus, social security appeal, or pro se civil rights case filed by the same individual?
YesO Nol

CIVIL: (Place ¢ 111 ONE CATEGORY ONLY)
A. Federal Question Cases: B. Diversity Jurisdiction Cases:

O Insurance Contract and Other Contracts

—

l. O Indemnity Contract, Marine Contract, and All Other Contracts

2. 0 FELA 2. O Airplane Personal Injury

3. O Jones Act-Personal Injury 3. O Assault, Defamation

4. O Antitrust 4. O Marine Personal Injury

5. O Patent 5. O Motor Vehicle Personal Injury

6. O Labor-Management Relations 6. O Other Personal Injury (Please specify)

7. O Civil Rights 7. O Products Liability

8. O Habeas Corpus 8. O Products Liability — Asbestos

9. O Securities Act(s) Cases 9. 8 All other Diversity Cases

10. O Social Security Review Cases (Please specify) Deceptivc and Unco.nscion.able Consumer
11. 0 All other Federal Question Cases g{z;t;zh) S,ISS:?;,?;OH Faimess Act, 18 USC

(Please specify)

ARBITRATION CERTIFICATION
B (Check Appropriate Category)
1, Jason T. Brown , counsel of record do hereby certify:
® Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 53.2, Section 3(c)(2), that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the damages recoverable in this civil action case exceed the sum of

$150,000.00 exclusive of interest and costs;

® Relief other than monetary damages is sought.

DATE: 2/9/2018 | T— PA BAR # 79369

Q/Attomey-at-Law Attorney LD.#
NOTE: A trial de novo will be a trial by jury only if there has been compliance with F.R.C.P. 38.

1 certify that, to my knowledge, the within case is not related to any case now pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court

except as noted above.
pATE: _2/9/2018 /A"_ ~~_ PA BAR # 79369

( Attorney-at-Law Attomey L.D.#
CIV. 609 (5/2012)
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

CASE MANAGEMENT TRACK DESIGNATION FORM

KYLE SMITH, Individually and On Behalf - CIVIL ACTION
Of All Others Similarly Situated, :
V.

TEMPLE UNIVERSITY, : NO.

In accordance with the Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan of this court, counsel for
plaintiff shall complete a Case Management Track Designation Form in all civil cases at the time of
filing the complaint and serve a copy on all defendants. (See § 1:03 of the plan set forth on the reverse
side of this form.) In the event that a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said
designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on
the plaintiff and all other parties, a Case Management Track Designation Form specifying the track
to which that defendant believes the case should be assigned.

SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CASE MANAGEMENT TRACKS:
(a) Habeas Corpus — Cases brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2241 through § 2255. ()

(b) Social Security — Cases requesting review of a decision of the Secretary of Health
and Human Services denying plaintiff Social Security Benefits. ()

(c) Arbitration — Cases required to be designated for arbitration under Local Civil Rule 53.2. ()

(d) Asbestos — Cases involving claims for personal injury or property damage from
exposure to asbestos. ()

(e) Special Management — Cases that do not fall into tracks (a) through (d) that are
commonly referred to as complex and that need special or intense management by
the court. (See reverse side of this form for a detailed explanation of special

management cases.) (X)
(f) Standard Management — Cases that do not fall into any one of the other tracks. ()
2/9/2018 Jason T. Brown Plaintiffs
Date Attorney-at-law Attorney for
(877) 561-0000 (855) 582-5297 jtb@jtblawgroup.com
—Telephone FAX Number E-Mail Address

(Civ. 660) 10/02



